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Bill/Resolution No.: SB 2110 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

12/22/2014 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I I d eve s an approf)nat1ons anticmated under current law. 

2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues 

Expenditures 

Appropriations 

2017-2019 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds 

1 8. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2013·2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

This bill will have no fiscal impact. All proposed changes will not financially impact either the state of ND or the 
licensing board. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

8. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bil l/resolution: 

BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 43-33-01, subsection 1 of section 43-33-0 2, 
subsection 1 of section 43-33-03, sections 43-33-0 4 and 43-33-06 , subsection 2 of section 
43-33-07 , section 43-33-09, subdivision c of subsection 2 of section 43-33-1 2, subsection 4 of 
section 43-33-15, and section 43-33-18 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to licensing 
hearing aid specialists; to repeal section 43-33-08 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to 
temporary trainee permits; and to provide a penalty. 

Minutes: Attachments 1 

Chairman Dever: Opened the hearing on SB 2110. 

Ned Schauer, Chairman, Board of Hearing Aid Special ists: See Attachment #1 for 
testimony in support of the b i l l .  (Attachment is a copy of the bi l l ,  with a section of code as wel l ,  
and Ned Schauer proceeded to walk through the bi l l )  

(4:58) Charles Swenson, Licensed Hearing Aid Special ist: Testified in support of the b i l l .  
(Noted that the l icenses of the office and the l icenses of the ind ividual  are personal l icenses to 
d ispense hearing aids.)  

(5:27) Ned Schauer: Returned to Attachment #1 for explanation of the b i l l .  

(7:49) Chairman Dever: Do you have to be an aud iolog ist to d ispense hearing aids? 

Ned Schauer: No. They have to pass the same exam. (Returned to attachment #1) 

(10:39) Chairman Dever: Are audiolog ists l icensed separately? 

Ned Schauer: Yes, to do audiolog ical work, but to fit hearing aids they have to be l icensed 
through 43-33. So they have to pass the same exams we do.  So, we were wi l l ing to concede 
that they do not have to do al l  the practical exams. They would take the written and show us 
that they can make ear impression and they are good to go. 
(11 :05) (returns to attachment #1) 



Senate Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 
SB 2110 

01/15/ 2015 
Page 2 

{16:46)Chairman Dever: Can you wa lk us through what would be involved in  becoming a 
hearing aid special ist? 

Charles Swenson: It takes approximately a year to go through .  I d id a d istance learn ing 
course from the international hearing society. They recommend that it takes 9 months to a year 
to complete. It is a lot the same that the audiolog ists have in their col lege education but the 
d ifference being that we don't have to go into the detai l  that they do with pathology. The 
aud iolog ists are more concerned about the pathology of hearing .  As a hearing instrument 
special ist, we only need to recognize that there is a problem. The state law requires 8 specific 
things that are needed to refer to a med ical professional and we have to be aware of those 
things. There is enough education in that to cover that sort of thing. I n  add ition to that, you 
have to have fami l iarity with everything from the procedures , which are relatively simple as far 
as testing goes, to being able to analyze the results of those tests to be able to fit the hearing 
aid properly. Most of that is done by computer, however it is subjective . People need to be 
able to have some sort of input. They need to be able to understand the human voice and 
hearing to be able to adjust the hearing aid to work for each ind ivid ual person .  Fitting of the 
hearing aid is very important. It is not something you can do once and understand.  One of the 
primary concerns at our  annual  meeting was the comfort and safety of our consumers. With 
the tra in ing permit as it is written ,  states that after one week of train ing you can run an office. 
One week is not safe for the consumer. I nd ividuals hearing can be damaged . It took me 
almost two years between tra in ing and working in  the office to be able to do this myself. 
Fittings and repairing are very important and require experience. It a lmost requ i res an 
internship.  Some states do requ i re an internship. 

Senator Cook: How do you charge for your services? Do you charge for the test and then the 
hearing aid also or you just charge for the hearing aid and the test is free? 

Ned Schauer: The test is free for right now. We are chang ing that to a screening for free. The 
testing is rolled into the price of our hearing instruments . We have d iscussed unbundl ing 
because we are competing with d iscount stores. 

Senator Cook: I can go to my eye doctor and get the results and go to anyone to get g lasses ; 
can I do that with a hearing aid? 

Ned Schauer: Yes you can .  You can even order hearing aids onl ine. 

Senator Cook: Are hearing aids subject to sales tax? 

Ned Schauer: They are not. They are a med ical device. Also, the trainee permit is extremely 
out of control and we wou ld l ike to el iminate it. I think it is much safer for the general publ ic .  

Chairman Dever: The problem was that the temporary trainees were able to act 
independently? 

Ned Schauer: They would have to have their work reviewed . 

Senator Flakol l: How many trainees in  the state? Did you vote as a board to provide the 
repealer? 
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Ned Schauer: Right now I bel ieve there are not any that have train ing permits; there might be 
some tra in ing but without the permit. It is not required . The board was u nan imous on al l  of this. 

Senator Flakoll: How often do current providers have to have professional development to 
stay current? 

Ned Schauer: Ten continu ing education cred its per year. 

Senator Davison: What is the cost of the testing? 

Ned Schauer: I believe it is $150. 

Senator Davison: With the repeal of 43:33:08 are we el iminating people away that are 
currently doing the job? 

Ned Schauer: No, I do not bel ieve so. You also can take the exam any time. 

Chairman Dever: How many l icensees are there? 

Charles Swenson: 72 aud iolog ist and hearing aid special ists . SD has 269 . 

Chairman Dever: What is the cost of the annual dues? 

Ned Schauer: Licensing fees are $150. There is dues for the ND Hearing Society which you 
do not have to belong to. 

Chairman Dever: Do you consider yourselves in the position to start paying the per d iem that 
you have not paid previously? 

Ned Schauer: We are.  

Chairman Dever: It sounds l ike the test is the standard .  Does that set a h igh threshold? 

Ned Schauer: I bel ieve it does . 

Chairman Dever: Do I understand that you are required to provide for a 30 day return? 

Ned Schauer: Yes that is federal and state . 

Chairman Dever: You have explained the b i l l  very well .  

Ned Schauer: We here to help the general publ ic. That is our duty as a board .  

Chairman Dever: Closed the hearing on  SB 2110. 
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I No Attachments 

Chairman Dever: Opened SB 2110 for committee d iscussion.  

Senator Cook: Moved to amend SB 2110 to remove section 10. 

Senator Flakol l: Seconded . 

Senator Cook d iscussed with the committee on what the intent of the amendment was. It 
was determined that the new language needed to be taken out so the amendment was 
revised to remove l i nes 10, 11, and the new language on l ine 12 because it was 
determined that the rest of the section needed to stay. The committee wanted for people to 
sti l l  be able to buy heari ng aids over the internet. 

A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 7 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent. 

Amendment Passed . 

Senator Cook: Moved a Do Pass As Amended. 

Senator Flakoll: Seconded. 

A Rol l  Cal l  Vote Was Taken: 7 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent. 

Motion passed. 

Senator Cook is the carrier. 
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Adopted by the Government and Veterans 
Affairs Committee 

January 16, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2110 

Page 7, remove lines 10 and 11 

Page 7, line 12, remove "a licensed hearing aid specialist free of any undisclosed charge to the 
purchaser." 

Renumber accordingly 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2110: Government and Veterans Affairs Committee (Sen. Dever, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends 
DO PASS (7 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2110 was placed 
on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 7, remove lines 10 and 11 

Page 7, line 12, remove "a licensed hearing aid specialist free of any undisclosed charge to 
the purchaser." 

Renumber accordingly 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bi l l/resolution: 

Relating to l icensing hearing aid special ists; relating to temporary trainee permits; and to 
provide a penalty 

Minutes: 

Chairman Kasper opened the hearing on SB 2110. 

Ned Schauer, Schauer Hearing Aid Centers; Chair, Board of Examiners-Hearing Aid 
Special ists: (Appeared in support .)  Some of the changes are pretty straight-forward . 
"Hard-of-hearing" is being changed to "Hearing Impaired ." Title of a heari ng aid , we just 
changed to ownersh ip .  There is no title . This is on page 2, l ine 1. We're also taking out the 
tra inee permit. We're e l iminating the trainee section of this law. In the past, someone could 
do 40 hours of tra in ing in their supervisor's office and see the general publ ic on their own .  
And I 've done this s ince 1985, so I know why this was implemented; so that person could 
generate reven ue.  We don 't bel ieve that 40 hours of tra in ing ,  you have the abi l ity to do the 
hearing testing and fitting hearing aids on your  own . What we came with was; you can train 
u nder a supervisor unti l you are fu lly l icensed , and then you can see the publ ic on your  
own . We think that's in the best interest of the publ ic. 

Chairman Kasper: And where are you taking that out? 

Ned Schauer: That's on 43-33-01, l ine 5, 6. We're el iminating the trainee permit, and that's 
why. So we're sti l l  on page 2. Licensee's primary office is where we need our l icense 
d isplayed.  Dupl icate l icenses used to have to be printed out by our executive secretary. 
And there's real ly no need for that, so we'd l ike to just copy them . Also on page 2, on the 
contract, we're adding the serial numbers of hearing a ids .  Page 3; this was a person 
engaging in the p ractice of measuring human hearing for the purpose of selection of 
hearing instruments. That d id not need to be in there .  As long as that person doesn't sel l  
hearing aids, they can do hearing screenings. Some of the cl in ics and hospitals do them at 
the plants , and we have no problem with that. So we're el iminating that, and that's l ines 3 
and 4 of page 3. Page 3, we no longer use an identification card for a l icense. We have our 
l icense is in  office . On 23-31 in  page 3; deals with reciprocity from other states. It is so hard 
for us to determine if someone is coming from Colorado, and we had this a few years ago. 
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They pass the national board exam, national board certification exams, and do two years 
and they're l icensed . Our l icensing procedure is totally d ifferent. Do we grant them a 
l icense or not? We'd l ike to el iminate that whole section ,  where you come to our state , take 
our exams, and get our l icense. We use the International Hearing Society's written exam as 
our state exam, and I believe there's 40-some states now that use that as a written exam. 
So, i f  you've taken that and come to our state, our board looks at that and says, OK. You've 
passed the written .  Because it's the same written as ours.  The practical exam,  they have to 
take our practical  exam sti l l .  Before, we were looking at each state, what their exam 
process was, and trying to determine whether that was equ ivalent or h igher than our 
exams. So we'd l ike to just el iminate that. And page 4,  l ines 1-8 pertains to the same thing .  
Page 4 ,  l ine 16; we've had some problems in  our  exam process. It's testing on the 
computer we use for our practical exam . People have complained because they say there's 
college tra in ing involved . What we're saying is, for college tra in ing ,  you use pretty much 
everyth ing . So we'd l ike to change that train ing to education , so you don't need to have a 
college education to pass your exams and become l icensed . That's l ine 16 on page 4. 
Page 5 wi l l  pertain to someone who has a doctorate in aud iology coming to our  state . We 
don't th ink they need to take al l  of our  practical exams. We realize they know how to test 
hearing .  They've got a doctorate in aud iology, they've done a year externsh ip .  Actual ly, 
Doug Schauer came to our meeting i n  Apri l ,  and spoke for this.  So we al l  agreed that they 
come and take, they don't need to take our testing portion .  They wi l l  do thei r  impressions 
and take our written exams, but not take the testing portions of our practical exams. 

Chairman Kasper What's the d ifference between the testing portion and the written exam? 

Ned Schauer The written exam is a four-part written exam from the I nternational Hearing 
Society. We use their exam. Once you've passed that, then you take a practical exam, 
which is aud iometer cal ibration , otoscopic examination ;  it's a hands on exam.  

Ned Schauer Moving on to  page 6 ,  just changing some word ing on l ines 3 and 4 .  Symbols 
which tend to connote medical profession instead of aud iolog ica l  professional .  Page 6, 
l ines 29-31; this is for our board members if we do anyth ing extra . Personal ly, I travel to 
Devils Lake to sit on a sub-committee. To go through al l  of this, it's hard to get anyone to 
volunteer their time. So, what we're saying here is, we'd l ike to get paid . Th is is what state 
employees get paid,  if we do anything extra from our normal board activities. Our  normal 
board activities, we get mi leage and expenses. And that continues on to page 7. The last 
section was changed . The Senate changed that. What we were trying to do is l imit i nternet 
sel l ing of hearing aids in the state. Orig inal ly, we had in ,  any person who sel ls a hearing aid 
to an ind ividual located in  North Dakota for i nd ivid ual use, that person must have his first 
fitting done by a l icensed hearing instrument special ist or aud iologist. The Senate took it 
out because they d idn 't th ink it wou ld fly. From what we can u nderstand , e l iminating 
internet sales and mail order sales, we can't do it. It's interfering with free trade. We thought 
it we got this i n ,  we could at least l imit it somewhat. The Senate did n't agree, and took it 
out. We' l l  work on it, and see what else we can do. So that should pretty much take care of 
it. Any questions? 

(10:57) 

Chairman Kasper What is the section you're repeal ing on Section 11? 
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Ned Schauer That was in there from before, I bel ieve. 43-33-08. That is the temporary 
trainee's permit. We'd l ike to el iminate that completely, for protection of the consumer. If 
you read through this, there's a lot of gray areas in  that. Our board has interpreted it several 
d ifferent ways through the years. 

Rep. B. Koppelman The struck language at the bottom of page 3 and top of page 4. It 
appears l ike you're taking away the board's abi l ity to have reciprocity with states that have 
more strict requirements. Thus requ iring those people that could have otherwise received 
reciprocity to write tests . Is it going to make it harder for those people to come into North 
Dakota because now they have to re-test for things that they m ight have received 
reciprocity for before? 

Ned Schauer I don't bel ieve so. There's 40 some states now that use the I nternational 
Hearing Society's written exam as their exam. So if they've taken that written exam,  we 
look at that and say, you've passed our written exam.  Wil l  they need to take our practical 
exam? Yes. What we've found in the past is, there are so many d ifferent exam processes in 
so many d ifferent states, for us to determine whether it's equ ivalent to or harder that our 
exams is very hard .  Maybe it wi l l  restrict it somewhat, but if they've taken exams in  their 
state that are more d ifficult than ours ,  they should have no problem coming and taking our 
exams. Al l  we want competent people working in this profession . 

Rep. B. Koppelman My second question relates to section 9, and I believe your testimony 
was that you wanted to be paid the same as other state employees are being paid as board 
members . 

Ned Schauer Not for normal board duties. If we do someth ing beyond normal duties, we 
would l ike to get paid . 

Rep. B. Koppelman So you understand, this section of law does not deal with state 
employees . It deals with members of the leg islature .  One of the things that my experience 
has taught me on deal ing with boards and stuff is #1; either you get paid for your days or 
time or you don't. It's not normally l ike you wouldn't get paid for a board meeting , but now 
you would get paid for the days when you travel .  I 'm talking aside from mi leage and meals. 
I 'm talk ing actual pay. Most boards do not have a pay that is the same as the leg islature ,  
and it's for probably a variety of reasons. So I th ink I have some concerns about drawing a 
direct paral le l  i nto what elected members of the legislature are paid vs. appointed board 
members for an admin istrative board . I just wanted to share that with you and see if you 
have any comments .  

Ned Schauer We ran this through the Attorney General's Office,  and they thought this was 
a good way for us to be compensated for anything that we did add itional to normal board 
d uties. So we just went with that. To be honest, I d idn 't put a lot of thought into it. 

Rep. Seibel Who are you compensated by? Is it out of the Board's funds? 

Ned Schauer It is out of the Board 's funds. 
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Vice Chair Rohr On page 5, l ines 11-14, who determines that they are indeed a g raduate 
of an accred ited institution? 

Ned Schauer I believe anyone with a doctorate degree now is getting it from an accred ited 
institution .  

Vice Chair  Rohr There are a lot of non-trad itional doctora l programs out there. 

Ned Schauer That's true, and the Doctorate of Audiology, you used to be able to do it 
onl ine.  You no longer can .  You have to attend an accredited institution .  Everyone now has 
to g raduate from an accredited institution .  You cannot do a doctorate onl ine l ike you used 
to be able to do.  

Vice Chair Rohr Who makes sure that's happening? 

Ned Schauer Our board . We wil l  check with their  board to make sure .  

Rep. Wallman Do you know i f  we're seeing more folks in  North Dakota who are coming to 
be served and receive hearing aids? We talk a lot about baby boomers .  I s  that g rowing in 
ND? 

Ned Schauer It is .  Usual ly it grows with the age getting higher, more noise-re lated loss. 
There's still a certain penetration rate of people who have hearing loss know it and won't do 
anything about it. It 's been consistent for years;  10-15 percent wil l  actua l ly do something 
about their  hearing loss. 

Rep. Wal lman There was a bil l on the Senate side that wou ld add a level of care for dental 
practitioners .  We've been talking a lot in this session about access . This change in  trainees, 
they can see the public on their own , as I think I u nderstand the bi l l  used to say, and now 
they wou ld n't be able to. I s  that going to d imin ish the abi l ity for people to access fitt ings and 
the abi l ity to receive hearing aids? 

Ned Schauer It might somewhat, but if they're being seen by someone who is not 
competent, that's not a good thing either. 

Rep. Wallman Right now, a person who is in tra in ing ,  they would have their  education ;  
they have to have a certain  number of hours , and then they get their l icense. I s  that 
correct? 

Ned Schauer That is correct. I d id the same thing in 1985. My fami ly has had this practice 
since 1964, and I d id so many hou rs in our main office . I then was able to go out on my 
own . My supervisor had to review everything at the end of the week. Honestly, I was not 
competent. With 40 hours,  you just, you're not ready. 

Rep. Wallman Right not, the trainee would be supervised in an office with somebody who 
is, and so that person would no longer be able to interact with the publ ic in any way? 

Ned Schauer That is right. 
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(19:47) 

Rep. Amerman Now you want them to do their train ing under a supervisor. How long 
would they have to train? And is there a certain  amount of time? 

Ned Schauer There is no time l imit. To pass al l  our exams, it takes about a year to get 
through everyth ing .  Then they are ready to take their written exams. The practical portion is 
done i n  the office with their supervisor. So they're doing hands-on in the office that whole 
time . But there is no set time l imit. 

Rep. Amerman In the reciprocity, I understand what you're trying to do. You're trying to 
make sure they take the exams so they know what they're doing.  If you have people 
working in the border towns, reciprocity also means they cou ld go from say Fargo to 
Moorhead and do this type of work. Now, if we start doing it to individuals coming in to our 
state, do you th ink that might handicap them? 

Ned Schauer I bel ieve that already happens . If you're going to operate in Moorhead , you 
have to be l icensed in Minnesota , and you have to take Minnesota's exams because they 
don't recogn ize ours .  Ideal ly, I would l ike to see a national exam, and I mentioned that to 
our reg ional governor at the I nternational Hearing Society. They don't seem to think they 
can get that done. 

Rep. Schneider On the compensation part of section 9 on page 6, it's not real ly doing what 
you explained to us you wanted it to do.  The way it's written right now, you'd be 
compensated for your board meetings as wel l .  Does somebody approve the per d iem and 
things? 

Ned Schauer Our treasurer would have to approve that; yes .  

Rep. Steiner Are there two paths here? So i f  someone is a qual ified aud iolog ist from 
Florida,  they come up here,  they've had the test, they have a doctor of audiology, they sti l l  
need to  do  a practical test, and they can set up a shop? 

Ned Schauer They sti l l  need to do the written and part of our practical exam. 

Rep. Steiner: Are we blocking people who normal ly come in  through a d ifferent avenue, 
another path where they tra in with you and you have to g ive them permission to train with 
your company, and then they go off on their own . Is that a second path , or are you 
el iminating that path? 

Ned Schauer No, we're not. That's a second path , so if someone would train with me and 
pass all the exams, they can go on their own ,  they can stay with me, whatever. But if you're 
an aud iolog ist from Florida and you want to move here, you sti l l  need to take those exams. 
It comes down to you have to pass our state exams, no matter if  you have a doctorate in 
audiology, if you've trained with a hearing instrument special ist, the exams have to be 
passed . And we think that's the best avenue for the publ ic ,  to protect the publ ic .  So 
everyone has passed our state exams, and we know is competent to do this. 
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Vice Chair Rohr Are you saying that the I nd ividual with the second pathway wou ld not 
have to do any d idactic at al l? Like be in  a college classroom or take onl ine classes? 

Ned Schauer No, and that's the way the law has been written for years. You do not need 
college education or tra in ing to do this, but you have to pass the exams. 

Rep. Laning Do the bi l l  changes that you're proposing change anybody's present job 
status or jeopard ize their employment in any way? 

Ned Schauer No, it does not. 

Rep. Mooney How extensive is that examination? What is detai led with that exam? 

Ned Schauer There is a 4-part written exam through the I nternational Hearing Society. 
Somewhere above 40 states use that written exam. Normal ly what people do is pass their 
written exam first, and then take the practical exam. The practical exam,  we have three 
board members for an exam team.  There's always an aud iologist, a doctor of aud iology or 
two, and one or two hearing instrument special ists on that exam team .  So you come i n  with 
you r  own equ ipment, and you set it up ,  you do a biological cal ibration wo we know how to 
cal ibrate their  audiometer, and why they're doing it. We ask questions as they go along . 
They do an otoscopic exam, which is looking in  the car canal ,  explain ing to us  what they're 
seeing.  They do an ear impression so we know they know how to do ear impressions. The 
actual  aud iolog ical testing is done on laptops. I bel ieve there are 16 patients on there that 
we choose from,  and they test on the aud iometer. That g ives resu lts; takes it out of our 
hands somewhat because either they come out with the correct results or not. 

Rep. Mooney How long does it take an individual? What is the burden to me to do that? 

Ned Schauer The actual length of the exam depends on how good you are .  The practical 
portion can be done fairly quickly, probably an hour. They set up an exam time, we meet 
twice a year, so they can take their practical exams when our board meets . They can take 
their written exams anytime. They just need one board member to proctor it. 

Rep. Mooney One of the reasons I am fixated on that is, one of the other committees I sit 
on is Human Services, and we had a lot of work that was centered around reciprocity, 
either the lack of, or the inabi l ity for other professionals from other states to be able to 
come into our state and practice fairly readi ly because we have huge problems with 
professional access in a lot of areas of the state. Related to that, then ,  is it standard that 
Minnesota , South Dakota and Montana do not accept North Dakota as a reciprocity 
situation? 

Ned Schauer As far as I know, none of those three states wi l l  take our l icensing .  We go 
there, we take their exams. They're al l  very similar. 

Rep. Mooney But it's that same or s imi lar  process? 

Ned Schauer Yes, that's right. 



House Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 
SB 2110 

3/6/15 
Page 7 

(28:53) 

Chairman Kasper How many audiolog ists are there l icensed in North Dakota currently? 

Ned Schauer Just audiolog ists, I 'm not sure. Aud iolog ists , hearing instrument special ists , 
l icensed to d ispense hearing a ids, it's somewhere around 60-65. 

Chairman Kasper These are the folks eight now that can do the hearing aid tests? 

Ned Schauer Yes. 

Chairman Kasper How does a person get started and do you have a formal tra inee 
program that's in another section of statute? Or are you going to el iminate tra inees 
altogether, with what we're doing here? 

Ned Schauer We'l l  e l iminate trainees altogether. If someone wants to get in this l ine of 
work; about three or four  years ago, I had a gentleman ca l l  me, asking what he needed to 
do to get l icensed . He actual ly trained with me. It took him about two years to get through 
al l the exam processes, the tra in ing .  He eventual ly went on his own ,  which was fine. That's 
one way to do it. Getting your doctorate in aud iology is another way to do it. There is 
probably more hearing instrument special ists than doctorate in aud iology. Their scope of 
practice is a lot larger than ours. They can test chi ldren .  We can't test anyone 18 or 
younger. Usually they' l l  be in a cl in ical setting . 

Chairman Kasper When you trained this person ,  d id you pay them while they were 
tra in ing? 

Ned Schauer No I d id not. 

Chairman Kasper When you're tra in ing these folks,  are they deal ing with the publ ic or are 
you just g iv ing them school ing? 

Ned Schauer No,  they are not. 

Chairman Kasper What entai ls tra in ing? 

Ned Schauer I get them the lesson plans from the I nternational Hearing Society, and a l l  
the textbooks that come with i t .  So they have al l  the read ing materia l  they need . I g ive them 
instruction .  You can go onl ine and find a lot of your information . Sometimes we just 
Goog led things and I explained it. The practical portion ; I have her test my hearing,  do her 
impressions on me. We use another of our board members as a gu inea p ig ,  also. No, I 
don't have them see the general publ ic.  

Chairman Kasper How long is the period of t ime that you wou ld suggest a person would 
need to go through a tra in ing process to be able to take an exam that they could pass? 

Ned Schauer I would say a min imum of one year, and maybe closer to two years. 
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Chairman Kasper While these folks are tra in ing ,  they usual ly have another job some other 
place or they're u nemployed trying to become employed? 

Ned Schauer Right. The law was written for the trainee permit for that reason ; so you could 
come on board , get your trainee's l icense, work under your supervisor for 40 hours ,  and 
then go out and make money. You could get paid commission .  

Chairman Kasper I 'm puzzled . I 've heard you say that, on the one hand , there's people 
that go out there that real ly aren't qual ified because they d idn 't get the tra in ing ,  and they 
just can 't learn how to do things by the book. On the other hand , you're wanting to el iminate 
your tra in ing opportunity, where people can work with someone who is already in the 
profession , to help people come on board to be maybe more qual ified to do the services 
the correct way. Which way is it? 

Ned Schauer If somebody comes to my office and wants to train ,  and is serious, I would 
pay them to tra in  in  my office. I realize people have to make money. U ltimately, I th ink  we 
have to protect the publ ic. If you don't want people out there that aren't competent to do 
their job . Bel ieve me, I know, after 40 hours you're certain ly not. 

Chairman Kasper The way things are working right now, first of all ,  you want to e l iminate 
the trainee permit. What you're el iminating ; you're no longer going to be identifying people 
who are standing up and saying,  I want to be trained ,  because there's no more permits . So 
there's going to be people working for aud iolog ists a l l  across North Dakota , we don't know 
who they are , we don't know how many hours they're going to be in tra in ing ,  you don't know 
the type of practical services they've had , and a l l  of a sudden,  their trainer says it's t ime for 
you to take the test because I th ink you've learned a l l  you can learn . So, they go take the 
test, and they pass . Now they're ready to work with the publ ic ,  but we real ly don't know if 
they're qual ified . 

Ned Schauer I th ink  you do,  because they've passed their exams. To be able to pass that 
exam process, You pretty much have to know what you're doing . Even there,  I 'd say a 
Doctorate of Aud iology coming out of col lege, doing a one-year externsh ip ,  and coming and 
passing a l l  our exams, they're qual ified , but they're not as qual ified as someone who has 
done this for years , in  the field . What we're trying to do is protect the pub l ic .  I know where 
you're going.  

Chairman Kasper It appears you're trying to protect the people in your profession.  It 
appears there's a l ittle b it of fence-bui ld ing going on here .  

Ned Schauer I t  may appear l ike that. 

Chairman Kasper How many new audiolog ists have been l icensed in the past five years? 

Ned Schauer I 'd say somewhere between 20 and 30. 

Chairman Kasper That means some have retired . 
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Ned Schauer Not a lot of them have retired that I know of. 

Chairman Kasper So we're increasing on numbers. How long does a person general ly 
have to wait, the publ ic ,  before they can get a test from an aud iolog ist that's certified, to be 
able to determine whether or not they want to have hearing a ids? 

Ned Schauer It depends what faci l ity. At my faci l ity, they can usually get in that week.  It 
depends on what faci l ity you go to. 

Chairman Kasper So we have faci l ities in the hospita ls or cl in ics as wel l  as the stand­
alone independent operators? 

Ned Schauer Yes .  

Chairman Kasper What percentage are the stand-along i ndependents compared to the 
ones that are in a medical faci l ity? 

Ned Schauer Hearing instrument special ists , a l l  of them are probably independent. 
Aud iologists, I 'm going to say probably 20-percent are independent, maybe as high as 30-
percent. Most audiolog ists work for a medical faci l ity. 

Chairman Kasper And so, your  board deals with both the aud iolog ists and the 
independents? 

Ned Schauer Yes, as far as the exams to d ispense hearing aids, they can work as an 
aud iologist if they're not d ispensing hearing aids . They have their own board for that. 

Chairman Kasper Is there any ongoing continu ing education requ i red for that? 

Ned Schauer Everyone needs 10 hours of continu ing education per year. 

Chairman Kasper Who provides that? 

Ned Schauer The N . D .  Hearing Society provides 10 hours .  They have their state meeting 
in  the spring usual ly. Through the speakers, you can get your  10 hours of continu ing ed . 
You can also go on l ine.  Most of the manufacturers a lso have classes . 

Chairman Kasper Are there publ ic complaints that come before your board for poor 
service? 

Ned Schauer Yes. 

Chairman Kasper: How are those hand led? 

Ned Schauer: They come in front of the board .  We usual ly have Mr. Edward Erickson from 
the Attorney General's Office attend . 

Chairman Kasper: So a publ ic person comes before your board? 
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Ned Schauer: It's an open board meeting . 

Chairman Kasper: I 'm talking just about a complaint. If someone says , I was wronged by 
this person who I brought these hearing aids from . I want some restitution .  I want 
something fixed . So they come before your board? And you meet twice a year? 

Ned Schauer: Yes .  And yes .  

Chairman Kasper: So we have people al l  over the state of North Dakota that might be 
s itting there for six months, not having the opportunity to have anyth ing add ressed with 
hearing aids that don't work? 

Ned Schauer: Yes. We had a gentleman whose son was an attorney. He brought i n  front 
of our board , or to the Attorney General's Office. It gets brought to our  attention before the 
board meetings. But that's when we address those issues . 

Chairman Kasper: And what power does your board have to d iscip l ine people? Does the 
board rule whether or not there was an event that the publ ic was aggrieved? Or do you 
have to go some other place? 

Ned Schauer: We can make a ru l ing.  The last one I 'm remembering is ,  we can fine them 
monetarily. We can suspend their l icense. We have d ifferent avenues we can use. 

Chairman Kasper: Do you general ly make a ru l ing the same day the person comes before 
your board? 

Ned Schauer: Not by any means. 

Chairman Kasper: So when do you make your  ru l ing? The next meeting? 

Ned Schauer: In that case, I th ink it went a couple of years. I t  was in  the process when I 
got onto the board .  It can take qu ite some time, and that's why we've tried to work with the 
Attorney General's Office; to see what we can do and what we can 't do legal ly, and what 
our options are .  

Chairman Kasper: The first step you might have is more meetings. 

Ned Schauer: That's true,  but everyone on the board also has their own practice, or works 
for someone . 

Cha irman Kasper: How is your  board selected? 

Ned Schauer: They are appointed by the Governor. 

Chairman Kasper: How many are on your board? 



House Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 
SB 2110 

3/6/15 
Page 11 

Ned Schauer: Ten .  We have fou r  hearing instrument special ists , three aud iolog ists , two 
consumers and one ear-nose-and-throat doctor. 

Chairman Kasper: And do they serve for a period of four years? And are they staggered 
so that you're coming and going? 

Ned Schauer: Yes. And yes .  

Rep. Amerman On page 3 at the top, on l i ne  3 ;  can you explain to  me aga in ,  what's that 
doing to take that out? 

Ned Schauer If you are not d ispensing hearing aid instruments, sel l ing them; you can go 
out and do hearing tests. I had a lady from Minot complain that one of the medical faci l ities 
there was going out to the plants and doing hearing screenings.  They can do that legal ly. 
They don't have to be l icensed under our law if they're just doing hearing screenings.  If 
they're sel l ing hearing aids ,  they have to be l icensed . I know one of the ENTs that used to 
be in  town here; his wife did al l  of his testing .  They didn 't d ispense hearing aids, so she 
could legal ly do that. 

Rep. Amerman:  It says this chapter does not prevent or restrict the sel l ing of these hearing 
aids, but then that's being struck. I ' l l  figure it out someday. 

Ned Schauer: If you want to actual ly sel l  a hearing a id ,  you have to be l icensed through 
this century code.  If, for example, you're in  a med ica l  faci l ity, and you want to go out to one 
of the power plants and do hearing screenings, you can do that without being l icensed in 
this century code. 

Vice Chair  Rohr These changes that you're advocating in this b i l l ,  are they pretty major? 

Ned Schauer They are . 

Vice Chair Rohr So are we doing this in  l ight of an increased number of consumer 
complaints vs. a decrease? 

Ned Schauer I don't think there has been an increase. We are doing because the board 
thinks it is right. We've had problems with this before; we've had problems with the 
reciprocity part of it, determining whether we can grant someone a l icense from another 
state. We al l  know the trainee permit is obsolete. We're trying to do the right thing.  What we 
d id is d iscussed it i n  the board ; a l l  the board members agreed with this . The ND Hearing 
Society ok'd this also. We didn't j ust come up with this and say, we're doing it no matter 
what anybody thinks .  

Vice Chair  Rohr: So what do you have in  place to make sure that i f  you see an increased 
n umber of consumer complaints that you bring this law back? Because the tra in ing section 
is where I 'm having the most concern . The trainee permit issue and all that. 

Ned Schauer: Where is your concern at? I guess I don't understand . 
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Vice Chair Rohr: I j ust feel l ike we're d i luting the program by doing that. 

Ned Schauer: We believe we're making it better, because now, if you're a l icensed 
d ispenser, you can see the publ ic. If you are not, you cannot see the publ ic on your own . 
The way it is now, after that 40 hours of tra in ing ,  I was in  that same situation in  the mid-80s. 
I had X amount of train ing in an office i n  Jamestown we had . I came to Bismarck and ran 
an office. Bel ieve me, I d id not feel competent. 

Rep. Laning I just had a response to Rep. Amerman's thought. I n  our plants , we test 
hearing of our employees. Those people are not d ispensing hearing aids at al l , but this 
essentia lly clarifies it, and says it 's legal for them to do testing on your hearing. There's not 
rea l ly any result from it other than to let your employee know he's mainta in ing or los ing 
hearing.  As far as I see it, it just makes that legal .  

Ned Schauer: Exactly. 

Rep. B. Koppelman: Does it say in the Century Code that that number of tra in ing hours is 
40, or is that done by pol icy? Under your current practice, where does the 40 hours 
appear? 

Ned Schauer It's in the Century Code. Under current practice , trainees shal l  train  in the 
same place of business as the supervisor, and must complete at least 30 hours of book 
and visual tra in ing ,  and at least 10 hours of tra in ing with an aud iometer. That is on page 3, 
l ine 2. This is 43-33-08. I 'm looking at the way it's written now. 

Rep. B. Koppelman If I understand this correctly, or at least how it cou ld be done in the 
past, you've had a trainee who has done their 40 hours of tra in ing , then they're a l lowed to 
see customers .  I'm guessing they're under the general supervision of whoever they're 
tra in ing under. So there is some safeguards that they're under either d irect or ind irect 
supervision of the l icensed person .  Then you keep going back to the 40 hours.  To me, what 
you guys should be looking at is either put it at the d iscretion of their supervisor, and saying 
when the trainer th inks that person is ready; or X number of hours ,  then they can do this. 
But that would be more productive in the train ing model rather than repea l ing the whole 
train ing section .  As opposed to, under the current model ,  it appears that that ind ividua l ,  as 
a tra inee, much l ike an apprentice or a resident in other fields, can make money for 
themself whi le making money for their trainer/employer, and have a l ivel ihood wh i le they 
prepare to become licensed . What you guys are proposing is a model that's more simi lar to 
what you in your practice were doing,  where you're making it an unpaid internship unti l they 
can become fu lly fledged , or ready to take their test, at which point that's going to greatly 
d imin ish the n umber of people who can afford to enter your industry. Is that your intent? 

Ned Schauer No. Our i ntent is to have people who are competent at their job.  Bel ieve me, 
we d iscussed how many hours would be enough .  Our board has d iscussed that at great 
length . Not al l  supervisors can do that. 

Rep. B. Koppelman Here's the problem: no l icensed person is requ ired to take on an 
apprentice , i f  we can cal l  them that. So the person who isn't comfortable doing it, or isn't a 
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good teacher, would not have to take on a student under current law. N umber two: You 
have said you weren't el iminating the trainee permit because of harm that was done to the 
publ ic so much as your  guys' feel ing that they weren't ready. And the point three that I 
heard ,  and you've said this in  numerous parts of the b i l l ;  you guys are a l icensing board . As 
a l icensing board ,  you ' re expected to have a certain level of expertise . Except, what you're 
doing in  this b i l l  is getting rid of a l l  you r  latitude to interpret that that expertise is. You're 
saying,  we can't determine reciprocity. It's too tough.  It takes too much time. We can't do it, 
a lthough the language says you may. It's permissive. You guys have a process for the 
tra in ing permit, and a whole section that deals with it. And you guys cou ld possibly amend 
that or maybe even write rules that go with that to define that, based on what the experts 
th ink .  But yet, you want to do away with the whole thing . At some point, people are going to 
start questioning the valid ity of the board , if you ' re taking away al l  the abi l ities for your 
board to help popu late your  ind ustry. Do you understand where my concerns are coming 
from? 

Ned Schauer I u nderstand where you r  concerns are coming from , but we're in a d i lemma 
where all of us as board members also own our own practices or work for someone; we 
on ly have so much time. So, to determine reciprocity from another state, if someone comes 
from Florida or Cal ifornia, we have to research al l  those states. 

Chairman Kasper Do you not have an executive d i rector who could do that? 

Ned Schauer We do not. We're all members who do other things. We have practices to 
run .  Our time is somewhat l im ited . As far as the trainee permit, we've d iscussed that at 
g reat length , tried to go other ways with it. You don't have to have a trainee. As far as 
having you r  supervisor determine whether you're ready to see the publ ic, believe me, 
there's some people in all industries that are not too scrupulous. This was put into effect for 
that reason ; so you could come on board ,  do your  40 hours,  go out, do your  testing , do 
you r  hearing aids, make your  commission .  

Chairman Kasper I thought I heard you say the test itself wi l l  weed out  whether or not 
they're qual ified . 

Ned Schauer It wi l l ,  but up unti l that point, you can have that trainee's permit, I bel ieve you 
have it for a year if you haven't passed your  exams. You can renew it for another year. 

Rep. Karls This seems l ike a huge board for a small organ ization .  

Ned Schauer I t  may be.  I don't know a lot about board , and I 've been on th is  one for about 
three years now. That's the way it's been for a long time. 

Rep. Karls Does you r  board ever have someone who has been poorly treated and they 
come back to you r  board with a complaint, and maybe there's legal action involved , and I 'm 
thinking of the pod iatry board ,  where this happened some years ago, and they d idn't have 
enough l icenses to pay the court costs to defend their board . 
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Ned Schauer As far as I know, no one has come back against the board , and that's why 
we have Edward Erickson from the Attorney General's Office, who wi l l  come to our board 
meetings if we need legal advice. 

Rep. Karls What does a l icense cost in your  profession? 

Ned Schauer I th ink it's about $150 for the l icensing fee.  The written exam costs money; 
the practical exam costs money. We're actua l ly pretty cheap .  I know Minnesota is up 
around $700-$800 for just their exam fees. 

Chairman Kasper Do you have annual renewal fees? 

Ned Schauer: $150. 

Rep. M. Johnson For the person that chooses just to go straight to l icensure without the 
tra in ing ,  how do they receive their train ing for the practical portion of the exam? 

Ned Schauer If you wanted to get l icensed and d idn 't want to go through any tra in ing .  

Rep. M .  Johnson For the practical portion of the exam, they're go ing to need proficiency in  
the fittings and a l l  of  that. So you can forego the train ing permit and just go straight to the 
l icensing exam.  For the practical portion of that exam, how do folks that forego the tra in ing 
get trained in  the practical portion of that exam? 

Ned Schauer You almost have to tra in  with someone in th is ind ustry. I know in West 
Spokane, they do have a two-year degree you can do at one of the col leges out there .  

Rep. M.  Johnson So they're at  vo-techs or something? 

Ned Schauer: There are very, very few. 

Rep. M. Johnson : So, most of the folks receive their practical tra in ing for the l icensing by 
going through the train ing process. 

Rep. Seibel Under the tra inee permit, someone currently can see patients on their own . 
And if you get rid of the tra in ing permit, and this becomes law, they wi l l  not be able to see 
cl ients or patients unti l  they pass the exam. 

Ned Schauer That is correct. 

Rep. Louser My question is on the reciprocity. Is there anyth ing North Dakota-specific that 
they test on when somebody comes here? Is  there anything un ique to N . D .  i n  e ither the 
written or the practical? 

Ned Schauer There real ly isn't. I know some states' exam processes are harder. I n  
Colorado,  you work under someone for two years, you take your  national board certification 
exams and you're l icensed there .  Personal ly I don't th ink m uch of the national board 
certification exams. I don't think it's a good exam process. 
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Rep. Louser I� there anything on the test that says, that asks them if they u nderstand the 
board process or the l icensing process, or the continu ing ed process in North Dakota as 
opposed to where they came from? 

Ned Schauer Yes. We do have a section on North Dakota state law. 

(59 :23) 

Rep. Amerman So if you take away the permit, and now they' l l  work under a supervisor for 
up to a year  or maybe two years.  When you tra in there is usual ly some kind of costs . Are 
there any costs to the trainees? Are there any books they have to buy; any materials? 

Ned Schauer: I can only speak for myself. I purchase everything . I buy the books, I do the 
study materia ls. I n  one case, I paid for everyth ing.  I paid h is exam fees, everyth ing.  But I 
can only speak for myself. 

Vice Chair Rohr If the person takes the written exam and passes it; and takes the train ing 
and they fai l ;  are we closing the door for that person to find someone to take them under 
their wing to tra in them so they can pass the test? 

Ned Schauer So you're saying if they take the written exam independently? 

Vice Chair Rohr: I g uess my concern is, if we're looking at competent people out there, 
then a re we closing the door and making this an exclusive practice here in North Dakota to 
l imit the number of people that can go and become trained in  order to pass the test? What 
if everybody comes to you and you say, "No, I don't want anybody." Because they aren't 
requ i red to take anybody to tra in them . 

Ned Schauer: I don't know the answer to that. I don't know how you would requ i re l ike 
myself to take somebody. At the same time, you're saying that person has to make money. 
I 'm an independent business. I have to look at my bottom l ine also. That is a leg itimate 
question .  There are some two-year associate degrees now. Are you getting paid wh ile 
you ' re going to college for two years? No.  

Rep. Wal lman U nder the current law, no one has to take a trainee. I s  that correct? So, al l  
this does is take away the permit that would al low a trainee to work on the publ ic .  They can 
sti l l  be trained ;  they can go to anyone's office that's wi l l ing to take them; they can get paid 
or not paid . Al l  this changes in that regard is that the permit goes away so that no one can 
come and hang out a sh ingle ,  have a bunch of trainees come and basical ly work on the 
public. 

Ned Schauer Exactly. 

Chairman Kasper Could you not have amended the trainee part of the law to require 
certain  restrictions of that tra inee before they could work on the publ ic? Would that not have 
been maybe a better solution? 
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Ned Schauer We d iscussed that, and just couldn't come to anyth ing where ,  what would be 
the correct number of hours .  

Chairman Kasper With a l l  of  you r  background,  you have 10 board members .  You do  these 
screen ings and tests every day. You're tel l ing me that 10 smart ind ividuals couldn 't come 
up with a formula to requ i re a certain number of tra in ing hours to be safely in the realm of 
being able to work with the publ ic. 

Ned Schauer: We could not. 

Chairman Kasper: One last question from me: I'm getting the sense from this committee,  
as is mine ,  I don't l ike th is  b i l l  at  a l l .  I th ink i t  is poorly thought out, poorly d rafted , and does 
not much of anything .  If this b i l l  fa i ls ,  what happens to you r  ab i l ity to do your  job? 

Ned Schauer: My job personal ly or my job as chair of the committee? 

Chairman Kasper: Your job as serving the publ ic .  Let's forget about the chair of the 
committee. 

Ned Schauer: It doesn't affect me at a l l .  

Chairman Kasper: Because I don't have a lot of l ike for your  committee either, frankly. Not 
the ind ividuals ,  just the process. I understand the d i lemma that you're not paid a lot. Maybe 
what we should have been looking at in this bi l l  is increasing your  pay so that your  board 
can meet more often ,  so that you could serve the publ ic better than what you currently are 
at twice a year where you have complaints, and as you said in you r  own testimony, that 
sometimes it takes years for a resolution ,  which I th ink is very, very poor. 

No opposition or neutra l .  

Hearing closed . 

Chairman Kasper: Committee, would you l ike to have a d iscussion right now, wh i le this is 
fresh in  our memory, or do you want to sit on it for a while? 

Rep. Laning I guess I have to d isagree with you ,  Mr. Chairman . I don't th ink this th ing does 
much at all other than get rid of this train ing permit. It looks to me like they've already 
standard ized on an international test for qual ification coming i nto North Dakota . And a l l  a 
person has to do after that is to have enough experience to pass thei r  practical .  And they 
do that essential ly now. Other than wiping out this tra in ing permit, which I th ink is probably 
a good th ing , if the permit al lows an inexperienced person to be testing for hearing aids, 
you cou ld get a bunch of charlatans out there that are sel l ing hearing aids for noth ing . I 
don't th ink there is anyth ing wrong with this, to be honest with you .  

Rep. B .  Koppelman I th ink many of us share the concerns about the repeal of the 43-33-
08 section for tra in ing .  I also have concerns about the paying of board members .  I th ink the 
way it's written is a l ittle d ifferent than his understanding in how he testified . And so, if this 



House Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 
SB 2 1 10 

3 /6 /1 5  
Page 1 7  

bi l l  was to move on ,  I 'd l ike to th ink that should be worked o n  to fix that. And probably d o  it 
in a way that's s imi lar to the way other boards do it, not matching it to legislative members. 

Chairman Kasper: We're going to appoint a sub-committee to work on this b i l l .  

Subcommittee Rep. B .  Koppelman ,  Rep. Wal lman, Rep. M.  Johnson 

Chairman Kasper: Check the repeal ing section,  check on ideas on how to f ix some of the 
th ings in here that you've heard being expressed as concerns. And we've got plenty of time 
for you to do you r  work, but maybe next week, Friday or somethi ng along those l ines, we 
m ig ht be able to have a report from the sub-committee. 
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Chairman Kasper opened the meeting on SB 2110. 

Rep. B. Koppelman This b i l l  is the one that made changes to the way the board of hearing 
aid special ists operates , some of their procedures , and whether or not they were going to 
get paid for their service. I started out by trying to schedu le meetings for this and talked 
with Ned Schauer. He had me talk  to Nathan Voss from Fargo who is another member on 
that board . After about one week we final ly got together, and at first I thought they wanted 
to k i l l  most of the bi l l  and just keep a couple things. Then they talked to other board 
members and nobody cou ld agree on what they wanted to keep.  Ned sent me an email 
that says, "As we d iscussed on the phone earl ier and after ta lking to Nathan,  we have 
decided we would l ike to ki l l  the bi l l .  We wi l l  look it over on what we want to do and 
reintrod uce it next session . "  I th ink  they wi l l  work out their  d ifferences d u ring the interim.  It 
d idn't sound l ike anyth ing was d i re in nature .  Once I provided them with some information 
on what boards and commissions were paid and wanted to know their feedback, I th ink 
they real ized that the i r  request in the b i l l  wou ld have pretty much bankrupted their board . 
The subcommittee actual ly d idn't need to meet. I make a motion for a DO NOT PASS. 

Rep. Dockter seconded the motion.  

Chairman Kasper Obviously, when the entity that introduces the b i l l  asks you to ki l l  i t ,  we 
shou ld probably accommodate them . Thank you ,  Rep . Koppelman, for encouraging them 
to get their act together and come back next session with something that works for thei r  
board and profession . 

A rol l  cal l  vote was taken .  14 Yeas, 0 Nays, 0 Absent. 

Rep. B. Koppelman will carry the bi l l .  
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Sixty-fourth 
Legislative Assembly 
of North Dakota 

I ntroduced by 

SENATE Bll..L NO. 2110 

Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 

(At the request of the Board of Hearing Aid Specialists) 

1 A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 43-33-01 ,  subsection 1 of section 43-33-02, 

2 subsection 1 of section 43-33-03, sections 43-33-04 and 43-33-06, subsection 2 of section 

3 43-33-07, section 43-33-09, subdivision c of subsection 2 of section 43-33-12,  subsection 4 of 

\ 

4 section 43-33-15, and section 43-33-1 8 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to licensing 

5 hearing aid specialists; to repeal section 43-33-08 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to 

6 temporary trainee permits; and to provide a penalty. 

7 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

8 SECTION 1 .  AMENDMENT. Section 43-33-01 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

9 amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 0  43.33 .. 0 1 .  Definitions. 

1 1  As used in this chapter, unless the context requires otherwise: 

1 2  1 .  "Board" means the board of hearing aid specialists. 

1 3  2. "Hearing aid" or "hearing instrument" means any wearable instrument or device 

1 4  

1 5  

designed for or offered for the purpose of aiding o r  compensating for impaired human 

hearing and any parts, attachments, or accessories including earmold, but excluding 

1 6 batteries, cords, and earmold tubing. 

1 7  3. "License" means a license issued under this chapter to a hearing aid specialist. 

1 8  4. "Licensee" means a hearing aid specialist licensed under this chapter. 

1 9  5. "Practice of fitting and dispensing hearing instruments" means the measurement of 

20 

21 

22 

23 

human hearing to determine hearing loss by means of an audiometer or by any means 

solely for the purpose of making selections, adaptations, repairs, or sale of hearing 

instruments. The term also includes the making of impressions for earmolds. A 

licensee, at the request of a physician or member of related professions, may make 
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1 

2 

audiograms for the professional's use in consultation with the hard of hearinghearing 

impared. 

3 6. "Sell'' or "sale" includes a transfer of~ or of the right to use by lease, 

4 bailment, or any other contract. This excludes wholesale to distributors or dispensers. 

5 :+-: "Traiflee permit" means a temporary permit issued ..... hile an applicant is in traifliflg to 

6 beeome a lieeflsee. 

7 SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 43-33-02 of the North Dakota Century 

8 Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

9 1. A person may not engage in the sale of or practice of fitting hearing instruments or 

10 display a sign or in any other way advertise or represent that that person practices the 

11 fitting and sale of hearing instruments unless that person holds an unsuspended, 

12 unrevoked license issued by the board as provided in this chapter. The license must 

13 be conspicuously posted in the licensee's primaey office or place of business. 

14 Duplicate lieeflses must be issued by the board to valid licenseholders operatinglf a 

15 licensee operates more than one office for a fee determined by the boardor place of 

16 business the licensee shall copy the license and shall display the copied license at the 

17 other office or place of business. A license confers upon the holder the right to select, 

18 fit, and sell hearing instruments, and the right to conduct any necessary hearing 

19 testing incident to the selecting, fitting, and selling of hearing instruments. 

20 SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 43-33-03 of the North Dakota Century 

21 Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

22 1. Any person who practices the fitting and sale of hearing instruments shall deliver to 

23 each person supplied with a hearing instrument a receipt that contains the licensee's 

24 signature, the licensee's business address, the number of the licensee's certificate, the 

25 serial number and the make and model of the hearing instrument furnished, and the 

26 full terms of the sale. If an instrument that is not new is sold, the receipt and the 

27 instrument's container must be clearly marked as "used" or "reconditioned" whichever 

28 is applicable, with the terms of guarantee, if any. 

29 SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 43-33-04 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

30 amended and reenacted as follows: 
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1 43-33-04. Persons and practices not affected. 

2 This chapter does not prevent or restrict: 

3 1 .  A person from engaging in the practice of measuring human hearing for the purpose of 
4 selection of hearing instruments if the person or organization employing that person 

5 does not sell hearing instruments. 

6 2. A person employed as a hearing aid specialist by the federal government from 

7 

8 

9 

engaging in the practice of fitting and dispensing hearing instruments if the person 

performs the practice solely within the confines or under the jurisdiction of the 

government of the United States. 

1 0  3. Activities and services of a person pursuing a course of study leading to a graduate 

1 1  degree in audiology at a college or university if the activities or services are under the 

1 2  direct supervision of a licensee, constitute a part of a supervised course of study, and 

1 3  the person is designated an audiology intern or trainee or by another title clearly 

1 4  indicating the training status appropriate to the level of training. 

1 5  SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 43-33-06 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

1 6  amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 7  43-33-06. Issuance of license. 

1 8  +. The board shall register each applicant without discrimination if the applicant passes an 

1 9  examination as provided in section 43-33-07, and upon the applicant's payment of a fee as 

20 established by the board, shall issue to the applicant a license signed by the secretary of the 

21  board. The license is effective until the expiration date stated on the license and identification 

22 eaFEJ. 

23 � \'Vher:iever the board determines that another state or jurisdiction has requirements 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

equh:alent to or l'ligher than those in effeet pursuaAt to this chapter for the praetioe to 
fit and sell heariAg iAstruments, and that the state or jurisdiction has a program 

equi·1alent to or stricter thaA the program for determining whether applioants pursuant 

to this chapter are qualified to dispense and fit hearing instruments, tt:ie board may 

issue eertifioates of endorsement to applioants who hold current, unsuspended and 

unrevoked certifieates or lieenses by examination to fit and sell hearing instruments in 

the other state or jurisdiction. Tl'le board may not issue a license to an applicant for a 

certificate of endorsement if the applicant's license or certificate from tl'le other state or 
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1 jurisdiction was obtained by e>fperienee. An applicant for a certificate of endorsement 

2 may not be required to submit to or undergo a qualifying e>famination, but the 

3 applicant m1:1st pay the fees req1:1ired by the board. The holder of a certificate of 

4 endorsement m1:1st be registered in the same manner as holders of a license. The fee 

5 for an initial eertifieate of endorsement must be tl'lC same as the fee for an initial 

6 license. Fees, grounds for renewal, and proeed1:1res for the suspension and re..,oeation 

7 of certificates of endorsement must be the same as for renewal, suspension, and 

8 revocation of a license. 

9 SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 43-33-07 of the North Dakota Century 

1 0  Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 1  2. The applicant for license by examination shall appear at a time, place, and before 

1 2  such persons as the board designates, to be examined by means of written and 

1 3  practical tests to demonstrate that the applicant is qualified to practice the fitting and 

1 4  sale of hearing instruments. The examination administered as directed by the board 

1 5  constituting standards for licensing may not be conducted i n  such a manner that 

1 6  college trainingeducation is required to pass the examination.  The examination may 

1 7  not imply that the applicant must possess the degree of medical competence normally 

1 8  expected of physicians. 

1 9  SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Section 43-33-09 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

20 amended and reenacted as follows: 

21 43-33-09. Scope of examination. 

22 i The qualifying examination provided in section 43-33-07 consists of: 

23 +. .a. Tests of knowledge in the following areas pertaining to the fitting and sale of 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

hearing instruments: 

a:- ill Basic physics of sound; 

&. .(21 The anatomy and physiology of the ear; 

e: Q} The function of hearing instruments; 

Eh � Elementary audiology; and 

29 e:- .(fil Any other requirements established by the board. 

30 � .Q,_ Practical tests of proficiency in the following techniques pertaining to the fitting of 

31 hearing instruments: 
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a:- ill Pure tone audiometry, including air conduction testing and bone conduction 

testing; 

tr. .(2). Live voice or recorded voice speech audiometry, including speech reception 

threshold testing and speech discrimination testing; 

e:- .(fil Masking when indicated; 

Eh 00 Recording and evaluation of audiograms and speech audiometry to 

determine proper selection and adaptation of a hearing instrument; 

8 e: §}. Taking earmold impressions; 

9 f:- .(fil Hearing instrument modification technique; and 

1 0 g;- ill Any other requirements established by the board. 

11 2. An applicant who holds a doctor of audiology degree from an accredited institution 

12 shall meet all licensing requirements. except for purposes of the practical tests of 

13 proficiency is only required to take and pass the tests required under paragraphs 5 

14 and 7 of subdivision b of l?Ubsection 1. 

15 SECTION 8. AMENDMENT. Subdivision c of subsection 2 of section 43-33-12 of the North 

16 Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

c. Unethical conduct. Unethical conduct means: 

(1) Obtaining any fee or making any sale by fraud or misrepresentation. 

(2) Knowingly employing, directly or indirectly, any suspended or unregistered 

person to perform any work covered by this chapter. 

(3) Using, or causing or promoting the use of, any advertising matter, 

promotional literature, testimonial, guarantee, warranty, label, brand, 

insignia, or any other representation, however disseminated or published, 

which is misleading, deceptive, or untruthful. 

(4) Advertising a particular model or type of hearing instrument for sale when 

purchasers or prospective purchasers responding to the advertisement 

cannot purchase the advertised model or type if it is established that the 

purpose of the advertisement is to obtain prospects for the sale of a different 

model or type than that advertised. 

(5) Representing that the service or advice of a person licensed to practice 

medicine will be used or made available in the selection, fitting, adjustment, 
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maintenance, or repair of hearing instruments when that is not true, or using 

the word "doctor", "clinic", "audiologist", or similar words, abbreviations, or 

symbols which tend to connote the medical profession or audiologieal 

professionprofessional audiologist when that is not accurate, or use of the 

titles "hearing instrument specialist", "hear{ng aid specialist", "board-certified 

hearing aid specialist", or "board-certified hearing instrument specialist" 

when the qualifying requirements have not been met through the 

international hearing society or national board for certification in hearing 

instrument sciences. 

(6) Habitual intemperance. 

(7) Gross immorality. 

(8) Permitting another to use the person's license. 

(9) Advertising a manufacturer's product or using a manufacturer's name or 

trademark that implies a relationship with the manufacturer which does not 

exist. 

(10) To directly or indirectly give or offer to give, or permit or cause to be given 

money or anything of value to any person who advises another in a 

professional capacity as an inducement to influence them or have them 

influence others to purchase or contract to purchase products sold or 

offered for sale by a licensee, or to influence persons to refrain from dealing 

in the products of competitors. 

(11) Sale of a hearing instrument to a person without adequate and proper 

audiometric testing. 

(12) Sale of a hearing instrument to a person when the need for a hearing 

25 instrument has not been established after adequate and proper audiometric 

26 testing. 

27 SECTION 9. AMENDMENT. Subsection 4 of section 43-33-15 of the North Dakota Century 

28 Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

29 4. Except for the secretary-treasurer, each ,bQfilQ member shall serve withoutis entitled to 

30 receive per diem compensation ~in the amount provided for members of the 

31 legislative management under section 54-35-1 O and is entitled to receive 
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1 reimbursement for mileage and travel expenses while engaged in the performanoe of 

2 the duties of the office as is provided fomecessarily incurred in the conduct of board 

3 business at the same rate as state employees. The board shall establish the amount 

4 of compensation for the secretary-treasurer. 

5 SECTION 1 O. AMENDMENT. Section 43-33-18 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

6 amended and reenacted as follows: 

7 43-33-18. Violations - Penalty - Injunction. 

8 Any person who fits or dispenses hearing instruments without a license or trainee permit as 

9 provided in this chapter or who violates section 43-33-13 is guilty of a class B misdemeanor. 

10 Any person that sells a hearing instrument to an individual located in North Dakota for individual 

11 use is guilty of a class B misdemeanor if the seller does not provide an initial fitting in person by 

12 a licensed hearing aid specialist free of any undisclosed charge to the purchaser. In addition to 

13 the criminal penalties provided, the civil remedy of injunction is available to restrain and enjoin 

14 violations of any provisions of this chapter without proof of actual damages sustained by any 

15 person. 

16 SECTION 11. REPEAL. Section 43-33-08 of the North Dakota Century Code is repealed. 
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1 .  An applicant who fulfills the
· 

requirements regarding age, character, education ,  and 
health as set forth in section 43-33-07 may obtain a trainee permit upon application to 
the board. Previous experience or a waiting period may not be required to obtain a 
trainee permit. 

2 .  Upon receiving a n  application accompanied by a fee a s  established by the board, the 
board shall issue a trainee permit that permits the applicant to engage in the training of 
fitting and sale of hearing instruments for a period of one year under the direct 
supervision of a licensee. The trainee shall train in the same place of business as that 
of the supervisor and must complete at least thirty hours of book and visual aid training 
and at least ten hours of training with an audiometer, as well as a minimum of one 
week with the supervisor before the trainee's first public contact alone. A trainee may 
not deal with the public outside the supervisor's office or place of business until these 
requirements have been fulfilled. After this initial period of training, the trainee must 
spend one day per week in the office or place of business with the supervisor. The 
trainee may not make any sale of a hearing instrument without first consulting with the 
supervisor and obtaining the supervisor's approval for the sale. 

3. If a person who holds a temporary trainee permit has not successfully passed the 
licensing examination during the one-year period from the date of issuance, the 
temporary trainee permit may be renewed or reissued once upon payment of a fee 
established by the board. 

4. A supervisor may not have more than three trainees under supervision at a time. 




